
 
 
  Executive Committee Agenda 

March 30, 2017, 2:30 p.m. Eastern 
Florida Association of Counties 

100 South Monroe Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 

Dial-in Number: 1-888-670-3525 
Participant Passcode: 998 449 5298# 

 
 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
2. Public Comment 
 
3. Approval of Minutes from February 1, 2017 Executive Committee Meeting 
 
4. SEP Project Management Report: Status Report on Work Order # 6:  Update on Preliminary 

Project List 
Doug Robison 
Environmental Science Associates 

 
5. Recommend Approval of Work Order # 7: Complete Draft Project List and Conduct Detailed 

Project Evaluation and Refinement 
Doug Robison 
Environmental Science Associates 

 
6. Preview of Work Order # 8:  Conduct Project Leveraging Analysis and Develop Project 

Sequencing & Implementation Strategy 
Doug Robison 
Environmental Science Associates 

 
7. Discussion of Potential Conceptual Design and Feasibility Study Work 
  Doug Robison 

Environmental Science Associates 
 
8. Planning Grant Update 
   8.1 Grant Management and Administration Report 
     Lisa King/Melissa Beaudry 
      Langton Consulting  
   8.2 Analysis of Work Orders Approved and Planning Grant Amount  
     Ginger Delegal 
     Interim Manager 
 
9. Update on FY 2015/2016 Independent Financial Audit 
  Ginger Delegal, 
  Interim Manager  
 
  Angela Balent 
  Warren Averett 
  



 
 
10. Recommend Approval of Contract with The Balmoral Group for Permanent Management 
Services 
 
11. Discussion of Teleconference Gulf Consortium Board of Directors’ Meetings 
   
12. New Business 
 
13. Public Comment 
 
14. Upcoming Board Meeting 
 April 6, 2017, 11:00 am, ET 

 Florida Department of Environmental Protection  
 Carr Building, Room 170 
 3800 Commonwealth Blvd 
 Tallahassee, Florida 

 
15. Adjourn 



 Notice of Meeting/Workshop Hearing 
 

OTHER AGENCIES AND ORGANIZATIONS 
Gulf Consortium 
The Gulf Consortium Executive Committee announces a telephone conference call to which all 
persons are invited. 
DATE AND TIME: March 30, 2017 at 2:30 pm (ET) 
PLACE: Dial in Number: 888-670-3525 
Participant Passcode: 998 449 5298#  
GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Executive Committee of the Gulf 
Consortium will conduct a Board of Directors preview meeting, consisting of a planning grant 
update; status of work orders under the State Expenditure Plan; contract for the Permanent 
Manager; and, conduct other business. The location of the conference call is the Florida 
Association of Counties, 100 S. Monroe Street, Tallahassee, FL 32301. 
A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Ginger Delegal at 850-922-4300 or 
gdelegal@fl-counties.com; or, see www.FACRestore.com. 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special 
accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 3 
days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Ginger Delegal at 850-922-4300 or 
gdelegal@fl-counties.com.  If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency 
using the Florida Relay Service, 1-800-955-8771 (TDD) or 1-800-955-8770 (Voice). 
If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter 
considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the 
proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is 
to be issued. 
For more information, you may contact Ginger Delegal at 850-922-4300 or gdelegal@fl-
counties.com; or, see www.FACRestore.com. 
 
 

https://www.flrules.org/gateway/department.asp?id=1000
https://www.flrules.org/gateway/organization.asp?id=1089
mailto:gdelegal@fl-counties.com
http://www.facrestore.com/
mailto:gdelegal@fl-counties.com
mailto:gdelegal@fl-counties.com
mailto:gdelegal@fl-counties.com
http://www.facrestore.com/


Gulf ConsortiumExecutive Committee Meeting 
March 30, 2017, 2:30 p.m., Eastern

 FAC Office - Conference Call

County Executive Committee Member Present
Escambia Commissioner Grover Robinson
Gulf Warren Yeager
Monroe Commissioner George Neugent
Charlotte Commissioner Chris Constance
Pasco Commissioner Jack Mariano



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3 
 



 
 

Gulf Consortium Executive Committee 
March 30, 2017 

 
Agenda Item 3 

Approval of February 1, 2017 Executive Committee Minutes  
 
 
 

Statement of Issue:  
This agenda item proposes approval of the February 1, 2017 Executive 
Committee meeting minutes.   
 
Options: 
(1) Approve the February 1, 2017 Executive Committee minutes, as presented; 

or 
(2) Amend and then approve the February 1, 2017 Executive Committee 

minutes. 
 
Recommendation:   
Motion to approve the February 1, 2017 Executive Committee meeting minutes, 
as presented. 
 
Prepared by:  
Ginger Delegal 
Florida Association of Counties 
Interim Manager 
On:  March 22, 2017  
 
Attachment:  
Draft 2/1/17 Minutes 
 
Action Taken: 
 
Motion to: ____________________, Made by: ________________________; 
 
Seconded by:  _____________________. 
 
Approved____; Approved as amended_______; Defeated_________. 
 
 
 



1 

 

 Gulf Consortium Executive Committee Meeting 
February 1, 2017, 4:00 p.m. (Eastern) 

Florida Association of Counties 
Leon County, Tallahassee, Florida  

 
 
Officers in Attendance Telephonically: Commissioner Grover Robinson (Escambia), Commissioner Chris 
Constance (Charlotte), Commissioner Jack Mariano (Pasco) and Warren Yeager (Gulf). 
 
Agenda Item #1 – Call to Order 
Chairman Grover Robinson (Escambia) called the meeting to order at 4:08 pm (ET).  
 
 
Agenda Item #2 – Public Comment 
None. 
  
 
Agenda Item #3 – Approval of Minutes from November 17, 2016 Executive Committee Meeting  
Chairman Grover Robinson (Escambia) presented the minutes from the November 17, 2016 Executive 
Committee meeting.  A motion to approve the November 17, 2016 Executive Committee minutes was made 
by Warren Yeager (Gulf) and seconded by Commissioner Chris Constance (Charlotte).  

ACTION: APPROVED 
 
Agenda Item #4.1 – SEP Project Management Report – Status Report on Work Order # 6 
Chairman Grover Robinson (Escambia) recognized Doug Robison with ESA who gave a detailed overview on 
the status of the work performed under Work Order #6, including detailing the completion of Tasks 4 and 
5 under Work Order #6 – assess any additions, deletions or modifications to the counties proposed projects; 
confirm status of local BoCC approvals of county proposed projects; evaluation of specific project 
informational needs; and, determining the need for county assistance and financial support to further 
define and develop projects.  There was minimal Committee discussion and questions posed to the ESA 
team for response.  No action was required on this item. 
 
 
Agenda Item #4.2 – SEP Project Management Update – Project Leveraging Opportunities  
Chairman Grover Robinson (Escambia) recognized Lisa King with Langton Consulting who gave an overview 
of the possible project leveraging which included information on the Wastewater State Revolving Loan 
Fund, the Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund and the Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation 
Act (WIFIA).  There were no questions or comments from the Executive Committee and no action was 
required on this item.   
 
  



2 

 

Agenda Item #4.3 – SEP Project Management Update – Preview of Work Order # 7   
Chairman Grover Robinson (Escambia) recognized Doug Robison with ESA who gave a brief preview of Work 
Order # 7 which includes Task 6: Develop and Draft Project List, Task 7: Develop Project Evaluation Criteria, 
and Task 8: Conduct Detailed Project Evaluation and Refinement.  Mr. Robison also informed the Executive 
Committee that Tasks 9 and 10 would be considered at the April 6, 2017 Board meeting.   There was brief 
Committee discussion but no questions and no action was required on this item. 
 
 
Agenda Item #5.1 – Planning Grant Update – Grant Management and Administration Report 
Chairman Grover Robinson (Escambia) recognized Lisa King with Langton Consulting who gave an overview 
of the agenda item and the status of the grant management by Langton Consulting.  It was reported that 
the next submission of the Financial Progress Report is on April 30, 2017.  There were no questions or 
discussion and no action was required on this item.  
 
Agenda Item #5.2 – Planning Grant Update – Analysis of Work Orders Approved and Planning Grant 
Amount   
Chairman Grover Robinson (Escambia) recognized Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, who briefed the 
Committee on the work orders approved to date and the amount of dollars expended for the approved 
work orders.  There were no questions and no action was required on the agenda item.  
 
 
Agenda Item #6 – Evaluation Team Report for Procurement of Permanent Manager to the Consortium   
Chairman Grover Robinson (Escambia) recognized Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, who gave a detailed 
overview of the agenda item including the timeline of progress since the December Board meeting.  
Chairman Robinson then introduced Shelly Kelley, Leon County Purchasing Director, and Chairman of the 
Evaluation Committee, Len Sossamon, Hernando County Administrator.  Mr. Sossamon commented to the 
Committee that the process has been very easy and the Evaluation Team plans on interviewing the top two 
candidates, North Highland and The Balmoral Group, in Hillsborough County on February 8, 2017 at 9:00 
am and will be ready to make a recommendation to the full Board at its meeting later that afternoon.   Ms. 
Hoshihara stated that there would be a 72-hour waiting period after the award of the bid to the winning 
vendor for bid protest.  There were no questions or discussion and no action was required on this item. 
 
Agenda Item #7 – Discussion of Officer Elections  
Chairman Grover Robinson (Escambia) recognized Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, who gave an overview 
of the agenda item and the historical process by which the Officers are elected each year.  There was 
considerable Committee discussion and, after which, a motion was made by Warren Yeager (Gulf) to 
present the current slate of Officers for reelection for 2017 to the full Board at its meeting on February 8, 
2017.  The current slate being:  Commissioner Grover Robinson (Escambia), Chairman; Warren Yeager 
(Gulf), Vice-Chairman; Commissioner George Neugent (Monroe), Secretary-Treasurer; Commissioner Chris 
Constance (Charlotte), At-Large Officer; and, Commissioner Jack Mariano (Pasco), At-Large Officer.  The 
motion was seconded by Commissioner Chris Constance (Charlotte) and passed unanimously.    

ACTION: APPROVED 
 
 



3 

 

Agenda Item #8 – Interim Manager Report  
Chairman Grover Robinson (Escambia) recognized Ginger Delegal, Interim Manager, who gave a detailed 
overview of the Interim Manager activities since the last Board meeting.  There were no questions or 
discussion and no action was required on this item.  
 
 
Agenda Item #9 – General Counsel Report  
Chairman Grover Robinson (Escambia) recognized Lynn Hoshihara, General Counsel, who gave a brief 
overview of the activities of the General Counsel since the last Board meeting, including a quick update on 
the bonding issue.   There were no questions or comments and no action was required on this item. 
 
 
Agenda Item #10 – New Business 
None. 
 
 
Agenda item # 11 - Public Comment 
None. 
 
 
Agenda Item #12 – Upcoming Meetings 
The next meeting of the Consortium Board of Directors will be held on February 8, 2017 at 2:00 pm ET at 
the Hillsborough County Center in Hillsborough County.   
 
 



4 

 

Agenda Item #13 – Adjournment 
There being no further business, the Committee adjourned at 5:05 pm (ET). 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Grover Robinson 
Chairman 



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4 
 

 



 
 

Gulf Consortium Executive Committee 
March 30, 2017 

 
Agenda Item 4 

SEP Project Management Report:  Status Report on Work Order #6 – Update on 
Preliminary Project List 

 
Background: 
At its December 2, 2016 meeting the Gulf Consortium authorized the ESA 
consultant team to proceed with Work Order #6 which encompasses Tasks 4 and 
5 of the amended State Expenditure Plan development process.  These tasks 
include: 
 

• Task 4 - Screen, Attribute and Map the Preliminary Project List; and 
• Task 5 - Perform Gaps, Overlaps, and Opportunities Analysis. 

The goals of these tasks are to begin refining the preliminary project list, assisting 
the counties in better selecting priority projects and further defining those projects, 
identifying specific project informational needs, filling gaps in project types and 
geographic coverage across the Florida Gulf Coast, and promoting greater inter-
county cooperation and regionalism where feasible. 
 
Status Update: 
Since the February 8, 2017 Gulf Consortium meeting, the ESA consultant team has 
conducted teleconferences and/or face to face meetings with all 23 counties, and 
in some cases multiple meetings. The objectives of these communications are to: 
 

• Assess any additions, deletions, or modifications to the counties proposed 
projects; 

 
• Confirm status of local BOCC approvals of county proposed projects; 

 
• Begin evaluating specific project informational needs; 

 
• Determining the need for county assistance and financial support to further 

define and develop projects; and 
 

• Screen and refine the preliminary project list. 
 

In addition, on January 26, 2017 the ESA consultant team met with senior 
representatives of the Florida Department of Environmental Protection and the 
Florida representative on the Gulf Coast Restoration Council in Tallahassee. The 
objectives of this meeting were to: 
 

• Present a detailed county-by-county summary of the SEP Preliminary 
Project List ; and 



 
 

 
• Obtain early feedback on project consistency with Council and State goals 

and objectives, as well as leveraging opportunities and guidance. 
 
At the February 8, 2017 Gulf Consortium meeting Mr. Robison presented a detailed 
summary of the FDEP meeting.  In general, the feedback from FDEP on the 
preliminary project list was very positive, and key FDEP staff indicated that there 
will be numerous opportunities to leverage proposed County SEP projects with 
other funding sources, primarily the various components of the NRDA settlement. 
 
Since the February 8, 2017 Gulf Consortium meeting, the ESA consultant team has 
determined that several counties are still in the process of determining priority 
projects and that there will be significant changes to the preliminary project list 
presented at the December 2, 2016 meeting.  In general, it appears that the total 
number of projects will be reduced, and there will be a greater emphasis on projects 
involving oyster restoration and land acquisition for environmental and recreational 
uses. The ESA Consultant Team will present a summary of the screened and 
revised preliminary project list at the upcoming April 6, 2017 Gulf Consortium 
meeting in Tallahassee. Upon approval by the Consortium, the ESA Consultant 
Team will meet with Restoration Council in April 2017 to present the project list and 
discuss informational needs. 
 
Recommendation: 
Information only. 
 
Attachment: 
None. 
 
Prepared by:  
Doug Robison – SEP Project Manager 
Environmental Science Associates 
On:  March 22, 2017 



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 5 
 



 
 

Gulf Consortium Executive Committee 
March 30, 2017 

 
Agenda Item 5 

Recommend Approval of Work Order # 7: Complete Draft Project List and 
Conduct Detailed Project Evaluation and Refinement 

 
 
Background:  
At its February 8, 2017 Gulf Consortium meeting, Mr. Robison presented a preview 
of Work Order #7 which authorizes the Consultant to complete Tasks 6, 7 and 8 of 
the amended State Expenditure Plan development process.  These tasks include: 

• Task 6 - Develop the Draft Project List and Spatial Database 
• Task 7 - Develop Project Evaluation Criteria 
• Task 8 – Conduct Detailed Project Evaluation and Refinement. 

The goals of these tasks are to complete the Draft Project List, and conduct detailed 
project evaluation, refinement, and definition of all county projects to be included in 
the SEP. 

With the completion of Task 6, Phase II – Project Nomination – will be completed. 
Tasks 7 and 8 are part of Phase III – Project Evaluation – of the revised SEP 
development process. Completion of Work Order #7 will define the full list of 
projects to be included in the SEP. These activities will set the stage for the detailed 
leveraging analysis (Task 9) and the development of the SEP implementation and 
project sequencing strategy (Task 10). 

 
Recommendation: 
Recommend approval of Work Order #7 by the Executive Committee for action by 
the full Gulf Consortium Board at its April 6, 2017 meeting. 
 
Attachment: 
Work Order #7. 
 
Prepared by: 
Doug Robison – SEP Project Manager 
Environmental Science Associates 
On:  March 22, 2017 
 
Action Taken: 
 
Motion to: ____________________, Made by: ________________________; 
 
Seconded by:  _____________________. 
 
Approved____; Approved as amended_______; Defeated_________. 



 

1 
 

GULF CONSORTIUM AND ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE ASSOCIATES 
AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 

FOR STATE EXPENDITURE PLAN 
 

-WORK ORDER #7- 
 

Complete Draft Project List and Conduct Detailed Project Evaluation and 
Refinement 

 
WHEREAS, the Gulf Consortium (Consortium) and Environmental Science Associates 

(Consultant) entered into an agreement for planning consulting services for the State Expenditure 
Plan (Agreement); 

 
WHEREAS, the Agreement requires written Work Orders to be issued by the Consortium 

for work to be performed by the Consultant; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Consortium desires the Consultant to screen, map and assess gaps and 

overlaps in the preliminary list of projects, programs and activities to potentially be included in 
the Florida State Expenditure Plan.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree to Work Order #7 as follows:   
 

Background 
 
This Work Order #7 authorizes the Consultant to complete Tasks 6, 7 and 8 of the amended State 
Expenditure Plan development process.  These tasks include: 

• Task 6 - Develop the Draft Project List and Spatial Database 
• Task 7 - Develop Project Evaluation Criteria 
• Task 8 – Conduct Detailed Project Evaluation and Refinement. 

The goals of these tasks are to complete the Draft Project List, and conduct detailed project 
evaluation, refinement, and definition of all county projects to be included in the SEP.  With the 
completion of Task 6, Phase II – Project Nomination – will be completed. Tasks 7 and 8 are part 
of Phase III – Project Evaluation – of the revised SEP development process. These activities will 
set the stage for the detailed leveraging analysis (Task 9) and the development of the SEP 
implementation and project sequencing strategy (Task 10).   

Scope of Work 
 
The scopes of work for these tasks, as authorized in the Planning Grant, are described below. 

Task 6 - Develop the Draft Project List and Spatial Database 
 
Based on input from the Consortium and the individual counties received in Tasks 4 and 5, 
respectively, the ESA consultant team will revise and update the preliminary project list and 



 

2 
 

develop the draft project list and associated GIS spatial database.  The draft project list will be 
mapped, and summarized in a Technical Memorandum, and presented to the Consortium for 
review and approval.  Based on input from the Consortium, the draft project list and spatial 
database may be further revised.  Upon Consortium approval, the draft project list will represent 
the universe of projects that will be taken into Phase III – Project Evaluation.   
 
Phase III – Project Evaluation 
 
Task 7 - Develop Project Evaluation Criteria 
 
It should be noted that the purpose of project evaluation under the revised County-driven process 
is not necessarily to eliminate projects, or to prioritize some projects over others, but rather to 
improve and refine each project included in the final project list to maximize its impact, cost-
effectiveness, and grant readiness. 
 
Based on the range of projects represented in the draft project list, the ESA consultant team will 
develop detailed project evaluation criteria to comparatively assess each project. Detailed 
evaluation criteria for environmental projects will focus on three key project attributes:  

• Technical basis and justification: Evaluating the technical basis of proposed actions will 
be based on best professional judgment. This attribute will be assessed in terms of 
whether or not proposed projects are based on the best available science and/or 
engineering, as required by the Council, and whether they have a clearly defined 
technical rationale and justification (i.e., will the project address a demonstrated need). 
 

• Feasibility: Evaluating the feasibility of proposed projects will essentially constitute a 
“reality check” also based largely on best professional judgment. The feasibility attribute 
will be assessed in terms of numerous factors including but not limited to: technical 
efficacy (both science and engineering) workability, permitability, constructability, cost-
effectiveness, and public acceptance. 
 

• Leveragability: Evaluating leveragability will involve an assessment of the ability for the 
project to attract leveraged funded from a range of sources. Under this task, the primary 
focus will be on funding streams associated with the Deepwater Horizon oil spill 
settlements. 

Separate criteria will be developed for economic projects.  The recommended project evaluation 
criteria will be summarized in a Technical Memorandum, and presented to the Consortium for 
review and approval. 
 
Task 8 - Conduct Project Evaluation and Refinement 
 
To facilitate approval by the Council, all projects ultimately included in the FSEP should ideally 
be technically justifiable, feasible, and affordable within the budget limitations of the Spill 



 

3 
 

Impact Component.  Towards that end, the ESA consultant team will apply the approved 
evaluation criteria to the draft project list to screen out those project concepts that cannot meet 
the criteria, or modify them so that they do meet the criteria.  Furthermore, projects that can 
attract other funds through leveraging increase the overall value of the FSEP.  Therefore, refining 
projects so that they can meet criteria for various leveraged funding sources will also be 
addressed in this task.  It is anticipated that many project concepts submitted by the counties will 
have significant information gaps, while other project submittals will be well-developed as 
conceptual or even final designs with accompanying feasibility, engineering and environmental 
studies.  To fairly and objectively evaluate the various project concepts submitted by the 
counties, those that are lacking in basic details with regard to such factors as technical 
justification, project boundaries, anticipated benefits, technical approach, construction methods, 
cost estimates, etc. will need to be further developed. Therefore, this task will involve the ESA 
consultant team working with individual counties, as needed, to further refine their project 
concepts. 
 
Note: Conceptual Design Funds 
 
It should be noted that conceptual design and feasibility studies (up to 30% design) for individual 
projects to be included in the FSEP are allowable activities for the use of planning grant funds.  
Accordingly, a total of $1,500,000 has been reserved in the planning grant for these services if 
the Consortium decides to accelerate design activities for high priority projects identified at this 
stage of FSEP development; however, such services will need to be procured separately as the 
ESA consultant team selection did not include engineering design. 
 
Upon completion of project evaluation and refinement activities, a final project list will be 
developed.  This methods and findings of the project evaluation/refinement process, and the 
recommended final project list will be summarized in a Technical Memorandum and presented 
to the Consortium for review and approval.  The final project list will serve as the basis for the 
remaining tasks. 
 
Deliverables 
 
The deliverables for this Work Order #7 include the following: 
 

• Task 6 Summary Technical Memorandum (as described above) and associated geospatial 
database of the Draft Project List. 

• Task 7 Summary Technical Memorandum (as described above). 
• Task 8 Summary Technical Memorandum (as described above). 

Schedule 
 
Upon formal approval of this Work Order #7 by the Consortium at its April 6, 2017 meeting, the 
above described scope of work and deliverables will be completed on or before October 31, 
2017. 



 

4 
 

Compensation 
 
Compensation of the Consultant for this and all future Work Orders shall be contingent upon the 
availability of planning grant funds from the Restoration Council.  As provided in the revised 
ESA agreement and the Planning Grant, the fixed fee costs for Tasks 6, 7, and 8 are shown in the 
table below.   
 

Work Order #6 
Task Description Hours Dollars 

@$205/hour* 
6 Develop the Draft Project List and Spatial Database 568 $116,440 
7 Develop Project Evaluation Criteria 480 $98,400 
8 Conduct Project Evaluation and Refinement 1,480 $303,400 

Totals 2,528 $518,320 
* Blended rate used for cost estimating includes: overhead; profit; reimbursable expenses; and project management. 

 
The Consultant shall be compensated on a fixed fee basis, and shall provide a final invoice upon 
the completion of each task, and approval all associated deliverables, encompassed in this Work 
Order.  The total fixed fee for Work Order #7 shall not exceed $518,320. 
 
  
WHERETO, the Parties have set their hands and seals effective the date whereon the last party 
executes this Agreement. 
 
 
 
GULF CONSORTIUM  ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE 

ASSOCIATES 
     
By:   By:  
    Vice President or designee 
     
Date:   Title:  
     
   Date:  
  



 

5 
 

SECRETARY/TREASURER:    
     
By:     
     
     
Date:     
 
Approved as to Form: 
Gulf Consortium General Counsel 

   
   

     
BY:     
 Lynn Hoshihura 

Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A. 
   

 Gulf Consortium General Counsel    
 



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 6 
 



 
 

Gulf Consortium Executive Committee 
March 30, 2017 

 
Agenda Item 6 

Preview of Work Order # 8:  Conduct Project Leveraging Analysis and 
Develop Project Sequencing & Implementation Strategy 

 
Background:  
At its February 8, 2017 Gulf Consortium meeting, Mr. Robison presented a preview 
of Work Order #8 which authorizes the Consultant to complete Tasks 9 and 10 of 
the amended State Expenditure Plan development process. These tasks include: 
 

• Task 9 - Conduct Project Leveraging Analysis; 
• Task 10 - Develop Project Sequencing & Implementation Strategy. 

The goals of these tasks are to maximize leveraged funding sources for all SEP 
projects, and to develop a project sequencing schedule and implementation 
strategy that optimizes the 15-year payout such that each county is annually making 
progress on their respective projects, while also ensuring that priority early action 
projects can be adequately funded. 
 
Completion of Tasks 9 and 10 will close out Phase III – Project Evaluation of the 
SEP development process and set the stage for the development of the draft SEP 
document. To accelerate the SEP development process the ESA Consultant Team 
anticipates bringing Work Order #8 to the full Gulf Consortium for action at its May 
17, 2017 meeting in Okaloosa County. 
 
Recommendation: 
Information only. 
 
Attachment: 
Draft Work Order #8. 
 
Prepared by: 
Doug Robison – SEP Project Manager 
Environmental Science Associates 
On:  March 22, 2017 



 

1 
 

GULF CONSORTIUM AND ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE ASSOCIATES 
AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 

FOR STATE EXPENDITURE PLAN 
 

-WORK ORDER #8- 
 

Conduct Project Leveraging Analysis and 
Develop Project Sequencing & Implementation Strategy 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Gulf Consortium (Consortium) and Environmental Science Associates 
(Consultant) entered into an agreement for planning consulting services for the State Expenditure 
Plan (Agreement); 

 
WHEREAS, the Agreement requires written Work Orders to be issued by the Consortium 

for work to be performed by the Consultant; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Consortium desires the Consultant to screen, map and assess gaps and 

overlaps in the preliminary list of projects, programs and activities to potentially be included in 
the Florida State Expenditure Plan.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree to Work Order #8 as follows:   
 

Background 
 
Proposed Work Order #8 authorizes the Consultant to complete Tasks 9 and 10 of the amended 
State Expenditure Plan development process.  These tasks include: 

• Task 9 - Conduct Project Leveraging Analysis 
• Task 10 - Develop Project Sequencing & Implementation Strategy. 

The goals of these tasks are to maximize leveraged funding sources for all SEP projects, and to 
develop a project sequencing schedule and implementation strategy that optimizes the 15-year 
payout such that each county is annually making progress on their respective projects, while also 
ensuring that priority early action projects can be adequately funded. Completion of Tasks 9 and 
10 will close out Phase III – Project Evaluation of the SEP development process. 
 
Scope of Work 
 
The scopes of work for these tasks, as authorized in the Planning Grant, are described below. 
 
Task 9 - Conduct Project Leveraging Analysis 
 
The ESA consultant team will develop an Other Grant Sources Inventory document that addresses 
potential leveraged funding sources applicable to the final suite of projects recommended in Task 
8.  This inventory will include a wide range of federal, state, private and NGO grant programs 



 

2 
 

(e.g., National Fish & Wildlife Foundation) that could potentially be used to leverage projects to 
be included in the FSEP.  This task will also involve close coordination with the Restoration 
Council and FDEP with regard to the availability and applicability of leveraged funds from the 
Council Selected Restoration Component (RESTORE Act Pot 2) and the Florida portion of the 
Natural Resource Damages (NRD) settlement.  The final suite of projects will be individually 
linked to potential leveraging sources applicable to each, along with estimated dollar amounts.  
Upon completion of this task, the final project list, and the leveraging potential for each, will be 
summarized in a Technical Memorandum, and presented to the Consortium for review and 
approval. 
 
Task 10 - Develop Project Sequencing & Implementation Strategy 
 
The approximate funding levels available to each county from the Spill Impact Compact 
component have been estimated for the BP settlement.  Furthermore, based on current knowledge 
of the settlement, funds will be paid out over a 15-year period, without the ability to use these 
funds for bonding and debt payments.  Finally, Council implementation grants for all projects 
included in the FSEP must be project-specific, and be channeled through a single grant portal by 
the FSEP implementing entity.  Individual counties will not be able to engage with the Council 
independently with regard to implementation grant funds. To address these complexities, a project 
sequencing strategy is necessary to expedite and optimize the distribution of Council 
implementation grant funds. 
 
It is anticipated that the final suite of projects ultimately included in the FSEP will vary 
significantly with regard to their relative complexity and level of development and/or design.  For 
example, some projects may be ready to receive construction funds, while other projects may 
require planning or design funds.  The ESA consultant team will develop a project sequencing 
schedule that optimizes the 15-year payout such that each county is annually making progress on 
their respective projects.  In addition, this task will involve the development of an overall 
implementation strategy that considers multiple alternatives for managing the accounting of Spill 
Impact Component funds amongst the 23 counties over the 15-year payout schedule.  A draft 
Project Sequencing & Implementation Strategy document will be prepared and presented to the 
Consortium for review, modification, and/or approval.  The approved final suite of projects along 
with the approved project sequencing and implementation strategy will serve as the basis for Phase 
IV - FSEP Development. 
 
Deliverables 
 
The deliverables for this Work Order #7 include the following: 
 

• Task 9 - Other Grant Sources Inventory document, Summary Technical Memorandum and 
presentation to the Gulf Consortium. 

• Task 10 - Project Sequencing & Implementation Strategy document, and summary 
presentation to the Gulf Consortium. 
 



 

3 
 

Schedule 
 
Upon formal approval of this Work Order #8 by the Consortium at its May, 2017 meeting, the 
above described scope of work and deliverables will be completed on or before October 31, 2017. 
 
Compensation 
 
Compensation of the Consultant for this and all future Work Orders shall be contingent upon the 
availability of planning grant funds from the Restoration Council.  As provided in the revised ESA 
agreement and the Planning Grant, the fixed fee costs for Tasks 9 and 10 are shown in the table 
below.   
 

Work Order #8 
Task Description Hours Dollars 

@$205/hour* 
9 Task 9 - Conduct Project Leveraging Analysis 982 $201,310 
10 Develop Project Evaluation Criteria 960 $196,800 

Totals 1,942 $398,110 
* Blended rate used for cost estimating includes: overhead; profit; reimbursable expenses; and project management. 

 
The Consultant shall be compensated on a fixed fee basis, and shall provide a final invoice upon 
the completion of each task, and approval all associated deliverables, encompassed in this Work 
Order.  The total fixed fee for Work Order #8 shall not exceed $398,110. 
 
  
WHERETO, the Parties have set their hands and seals effective the date whereon the last party 
executes this Agreement. 
 
 
 
GULF CONSORTIUM  ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE 

ASSOCIATES 
     
By:   By:  
    Vice President or designee 
     
Date:   Title:  
     
   Date:  

  



 

4 
 

SECRETARY/TREASURER:    
     
By:     
     
     
Date:     
 
Approved as to Form: 
Gulf Consortium General Counsel 

   
   

     
BY:     
 Lynn Hoshihura 

Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A. 
   

 Gulf Consortium General Counsel    
 



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 7 
 



 
 

Gulf Consortium Executive Committee 
March 30, 2017 

 
Agenda Item 7 

Discussion of Potential Conceptual Design and Feasibility Study Work 
 
 
Background:  
At its February 8, 2017 Gulf Consortium meeting, the Board directed the ESA 
Consultant Team to assess the need for accessing planning grant funds to conduct 
“conceptual design and feasibility studies” to further define and cost projects to be 
included in the SEP. Specifically, the Board requested that a cumulative cost 
estimate be developed for conceptual design and feasibility studies needed to 
complete the SEP. This cost estimate will to be used to determine the need to 
procure professional engineering services to complete conceptual design and 
feasibility studies concurrent with the development of the SEP. 
 
Based on information received from the counties as of this writing, there does 
appear to be a need to procure professional engineering services to access the 
$1.5 million set aside in the existing Gulf Consortium planning grant.  It is not clear 
at this time if the planning grant will need to be amended to access additional funds 
beyond this $1.5 million set-aside. 
 
Mr. Robison will present an overview of the process used to determine the need for 
conceptual design and feasibility study funds, and a summary of the cumulative 
cost estimates as of this writing. It is anticipated that the need for these funds will 
be further evaluated once the ESA Consultant Team meets with the Restoration 
Council in April 2017. 
 
Recommendation: 
Information only. 
 
Attachment: 
None. 
 
Prepared by: 
Doug Robison – SEP Project Manager 
Environmental Science Associates 
On:  March 22, 2017 



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8.1 
 



1 
 

Gulf Consortium Executive Committee 
March 30, 2017 

 
Agenda Item 8.1 

Update on Planning Grant  
 

Executive Summary: 
Update on the status of the Planning Grant. 
 
Most Recent Activity: 
A Planning Grant in the amount of $4,640,675 was awarded to the Gulf Consortium 
on June 23, 2016.   The Gulf Consortium executed the grant agreement on June 28, 
2016. Langton Consulting and Consortium staff have developed the financial control 
systems and enrolled the Consortium in invoicing and payment systems and 
commenced the drawdown and disbursement of federal grant funds. Three payment 
requests totally $506,303.27 have been submitted and paid to date. The Gulf 
Consortium’s first Financial Progress report for the period of 9/23/14-9/30/16 was 
submitted on 10/30/16. 
 
Full Background on Post Award Process/Procedure: 
The Consortium submitted its fourth payment request in the amount of $14,373.43 
through RAAMS on March 10, 2017.  As of March 17, this payment request was still 
pending. 
 
The Consortium’s next Financial Progress report is due April 30, 2017. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Under Work Order #5, the Consortium agreed to pay ESA a $5,000 flat fee monthly 
for grant management services (Task 15) provided by Langton Consulting.   
 
Attachments: 
None 
 
Recommendation:   
For information only. 
 
Prepared by:  
Lisa King 
Langton Consulting 
On:  March 21, 2017 



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8.2 
 



 
 

Gulf Consortium Executive Committee 
March 30, 2017 

 
Agenda Item 8.2 

Planning Grant Update:  Analysis of Work Orders Approved and  
Planning Grant Award  

 
Executive Summary: 
Presentation of ESA Work Orders approved to date and a comparison of that 
encumbered amount with respect to the Planning Grant Award. 
 
Background: 
On April 22, 2016, the Gulf Consortium Board of Directors approved a contract 
amendment for the ESA Consulting Team to assist the Consortium in developing 
Florida’s State Expenditure Plan for the Governor’s submission to the Restoration 
Council for the Spill Impact Component of the RESTORE Act.  The ESA Team was 
selected and hired after a comprehensive, competitively procured process.  The 
Contract between the Consortium and ESA is a not to exceed amount of 
$2,722,780.  The contract is performed on a work order basis. 
 
The Consortium also hired Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson as its General Counsel, also 
after a comprehensive, competitively procured process.  The contract between the 
Consortium and NGN is a not to exceed amount of $150,000 per year. 
 
The Consortium’s Planning Grant Application was approved by the Restoration 
Council on June 23, 2016 and the award contract was executed on June 28.  The 
grant award is in the amount of $4,640,675. 
 
Analysis: 
As of September 13, 2016, the Consortium has approved five work orders, totaling 
$576,688, broken down as follows: 
 
Task 1 (PSEP, Planning Grant App)     $50,980  
(approved 1/21/15) ($35,980 of which is funded by the grant) 
 
Task 2 (Goal Setting Workshop)      $21,560 
(approved 3/25/15) 
 
Task 3 (Public Involvement – Phase I)     $82,388 
(approved 6/19/15) 
 
Work Order 4(A) (Prelim Project List – Phase I)    $92,660 
(approved 6/28/16) 
 
Work Order 4(B) (Preliminary Project List-Phase II) 
(approved 9/13/16)        $209,100 
  



 
 

 
Work Order 5 (Grant Admin)      $120,000 
(approved 4/21/16) ($5,000 per month for 24 months) 
 
Work Order 6 (Map Preliminary Project List & Perform Gaps Analysis) 
(approved 12/2/16)        $455,290 
 
                Total               $1,031,978 
 
As of September 13, 2016, the Consortium has approved one other contract to be 
funded partially from the planning grant:  Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson  
 
NGN General Counsel Services      $180,000 
($90,000 of which can be funded by the grant, annually) 
 
Also, out of the grant award, the Consortium can pay for some of the actual costs it 
incurs for its meetings:  AV, IT, meeting space.  These costs are incurred on a 
meeting by meeting basis.   
 
AV/IT Reimbursement       $11,285  
(in the first grant drawdown; incurred between 8/22/14 – 4/30/16)  
 
Accordingly, the following summarizes the grant budget as compared to Consortium-
approved and grant-fundable contracts: 
 

Grant Award ESA Contract 
Amount 

ESA Work 
Orders 

Approved to 
Date 

NGN 
Contract 

from Grant 

AV 
Reimbursement 

$4,640,675 $2,722,780 $1,031,978 $180,000 $11,285 
 
Options: 
No action required.   
 
Recommendation:   
For information only. 
 
Prepared by:  
Ginger Delegal 
Florida Association of Counties 
Interim Manager 
On:  March 22, 2017 



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 9 
 



 
 

Gulf Consortium Executive Committee  
March 30, 2017 

 
Agenda Item 9 

Update on FY 2015-2016 Independent Financial Audit  
 

Statement of Issue:  
Discuss the FY 2015/2016 Independent Financial Audit. 
 
Background:   
Florida law, under section 218.39, Florida Statutes, requires that an annual independent 
financial audit be conducted on the Gulf Consortium. The Consortium conducted a 
competitive selection process that led to the engagement of Warren Averett to conduct 
the Consortium’s FY 2013/2014 independent audit.  The Executive Committee was 
empowered to extend that contract for additional years, which it did on at its September 
9, 2016 meeting for FY 2015/2016.  
 
The FY 2015/2016 audit is complete and the report finalized.  The report will be filed 
with both the State of Florida’s Chief Financial Officer and the Florida Auditor General 
as further required by Florida law. 
 
The auditor’s opinion is that:  
 

The financial statements..., in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the business–type activities of the Gulf Consortium, as of 
September 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position, 
and,….cash flows thereof are in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 
There were no negative management notes or comments in the report.  The entire 
report is attached for review and discussion.  Members of the Warren Averett firm are 
available for questions, during the meeting. 
 
Fiscal Impact:   
Under the Consortium’s contract for services with Warren Averett for the FY 2015/2016 
independent financial audit, the Consortium will pay Warren Averett $3,000.00 within 45 
days of receipt of the invoice.  
 
Recommendation:   
Discuss and recommend receipt of the final report to the full Board at its meeting on 
April 6, 2017. 
 
Attachment: 
Draft FY 2015/2016 Independent Financial Audit. 
 
Prepared by:  
Ginger Delegal 
Florida Association of Counties  
Interim Manager 
On:  March 22, 2017 



 

GULF CONSORTIUM 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 

DRAFT



GULF CONSORTIUM 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

 
 

 

  
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 1 
  
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 3 
  
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
    Proprietary Fund – Business-Type Activities 
 

 
   Statement of Net Position 7 
  
   Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 8 
  
   Statement of Cash Flows 9 
 
   Notes to the Financial Statements 

 
10 

  
COMPLIANCE SECTION 
 

 

  Independent Accountants’ Report on an Examination of Compliance Requirements  
   in Accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General 

 
14 

 
  Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial 

Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an 
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards   15 

    
 Management Letter   17 

    
 
 

DRAFT



                                                                       

  

 

1 

 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

 
To the Members of the Gulf Consortium 

 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Gulf 
Consortium (the Consortium), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2016, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Consortium's basic financial 
statements, as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express 
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
  

DRAFT



 

 

2 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business-type activities of the Gulf Consortium, as of September 
30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows 
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 3-5 be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part 
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 
20, 2017, on our consideration of the Gulf Consortium’s internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering Gulf Consortium’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
Fort Walton Beach, Florida 
March 20, 2017 
 

 

DRAFT



 

3 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
As management of the Gulf Consortium (the Consortium), our discussion and analysis of the 
Consortium's financial performance provides an overview of the Consortium's financial activities for 
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. It should be read in conjunction with the Consortium's 
financial statements which follow this section. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 The Consortium's assets exceeded its liabilities by approximately $13 thousand(net position) 
and represents a decrease of $2,500 from the prior year.  The total net position of the 
Consortium is unrestricted. 

 Operating revenues consist of membership dues paid by each of the 23 participating 
counties and grant funds earned from the Oil Spill Impact Program.  Total revenues earned 
during the year ended September 30, 2016 was approximately $418,000 of which 33% was 
generated from membership dues and 66% from a federal grant award. 

 Grant funded expenses of $278,613 consisted of approved pre-award costs of $170,953 
and $107,660 of services approved under task orders to provide grant management 
services and compilation of the preliminary project list.  Other operating expense of 
$142,695 which were paid from membership dues and prior year unrestricted resources 
related to interim Consortium management, legal, audit, grant writing and meeting and travel 
expenses. 
 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The Gulf Consortium is a public entity created in October 2012 by Inter-local Agreement among 
Florida's 23 Gulf Coast counties, from Escambia County in the western panhandle of Florida to 
Monroe County on the southern tip of Florida and the United States. 
 
Florida’s 23 Gulf Coast Counties formed the Consortium to meet requirements of the RESTORE 
Act to develop a State Expenditure Plan for economic and environmental recovery of the Gulf coast 
in Florida following the Deepwater Horizon oil spill. The RESTORE Act was passed by the 
Congress on June 29, 2012 and signed into law on July 6, 2012 by the President. 
 
The Consortium Board of Directors consists of one representative from each of the 23 counties. As 
a public entity, the Consortium must meet all government transparency requirements in Florida, 
including open public records and meetings, ethics, and state auditing obligations. Since its 
inception, the Consortium has held several committee meetings to begin developing Florida’s State 
Expenditure Plan. 
 
To avoid duplication and to effectively utilize available resources, Florida’s local governments are 
working in partnership with the State of Florida to fully recover the Gulf of Mexico following the 
Deepwater Horizon disaster. To foster the development of the State Expenditure Plan, enhance 
coordination, and to also ensure consistency with the goals and objectives of the Gulf Coast 
Ecosystem Restoration Council’s Draft Initial Comprehensive Plan: Restoring the Gulf Coast’s 
Ecosystem and Economy, the Consortium has entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with 
Florida Governor Rick Scott.    
 
  

DRAFT



 

4 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – CONTINUED  
 
As a result of the nature of the funding the Gulf Consortium will receive, this function is considered 
a business-type activity and is accounted for in an enterprise fund in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles for governments as established by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB). As such, the required components of the Consortium's financial 
statements are as follows: 
 

• Management's Discussion and Analysis 

• Statement of Net Position 

• Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 

• Statement of Cash Flows 

• Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
Required Supplementary Information, other than Management's Discussion and Analysis, is not 
applicable to the Consortium's form of government and related activities. 
 
The statement of net position and the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net 
position report information about the Consortium using the accrual basis of accounting, similar to 
most private-sector companies, as required for enterprise funds. The statement of net position 
presents information on the Consortium's (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources and (b) 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between the two reported as net 
position. In the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, the current year's 
revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 
 
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash 
flows in future fiscal periods. The statement of cash flows provides information as to the sources 
and uses of the Consortium's funds. 
 
  

DRAFT



 

5 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
Table 1 focuses on net position. The Consortium's net position was $13.239 as of September 30, 
2016. Unrestricted net position is intended to cover Consortium on-going operating expenses. 
During the year ended September 30, 2016 the Consortium budgeted to use $15,000 of previous 
year net position to fund current year operating costs; however actual expenses only exceeded 
operating revenue by $2,576.  Legal, meeting and travel expenses were less than budgeted 
amounts. 
 
Table 2 focuses on the change in net position. Operating revenues consist of membership dues 
paid by each of the 23 participating counties and grant funds earned from the Oil Spill Impact 
Program. Grant funded expenses of $278,613 consisted of approved pre-award costs of $170,953 
and $107,660 of services approved under task orders to provide grant management services and 
compilation of the preliminary project list.  Other operating expense of $142,695 which were paid 
from membership dues and prior year unrestricted resources related to interim Consortium 
management, legal, audit, grant writing and meeting and travel expenses. 
 

2016 2015

Current and other assets 314,125$        47,949$          

Total assets 314,125          47,949            

Accounts payable 300,886          32,134            

Total liabilities 300,886          32,134            
Net position

Unrestricted 13,239            15,815            

Total net position 13,239$          15,815$          

Table 1
GULF CONSORTIUM

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND 2015

Business-Type Activities

   

DRAFT



 

6 

2016 2015

REVENUES
Operating revenues 418,732$        140,071$        

EXPENSES
Operating expenses 421,308          132,550          

(2,576)             7,521              

15,815            8,294              

13,239$          15,815$          

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Table 2
GULF CONSORTIUM

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND 2015

Business-Type Activities

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 
The Consortium’s budget for fiscal year 2017 totals $1,663,180, which is $1.2 million higher than 
the fiscal year 2016 approved budget due to increased grant funded activity.  The Consortium has 
budgeted $1,493,130 of federal grant revenue with grant expenses budgeted in the same amount.  
Tasks expected to be started during the year ended September 30, 2017 include analysis of the 
preliminary project list, perform gaps, overlaps and opportunities analysis, develop project 
evaluation criteria, project evaluation and refinement, project leveraging analysis and project 
oversight including grant reporting and draw requests and other management tasks. 
 
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a narrative overview and analysis of the financial 
activities of the Consortium for the fiscal year that ended September 30, 2016. Management's 
Discussion and Analysis is designed to: (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant financial 
issues, (b) provide an overview of the Consortium's financial activities, (c) identify changes in the 
Consortium's financial position, and (d) identify individual fund issues or concerns of the Gulf 
Consortium's financial activity. Questions concerning any of the information provided in the report or 
requests for additional information should be addressed to the Executive Director, Florida 
Association of Counties, 100 South Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32301. 
 

DRAFT



GULF CONSORTIUM 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

See notes to the financial statements. 
 

7 

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash 35,512$          
Restricted assets

Cash 170,953
Due from other governments 107,660

TOTAL ASSETS 314,125          

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 22,273            
Accounts payable from restricted assets 278,613

TOTAL LIABILITIES 300,886          

NET POSITION
Unrestricted 13,239            

TOTAL NET POSITION 13,239$          

 
 

DRAFT



GULF CONSORTIUM 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

See notes to the financial statements. 
 

8 

OPERATING REVENUES
Planning grant 278,613$        
Membership dues 140,050
Other 69

Total operating revenues 418,732          

OPERATING EXPENSES
Management 60,000
Legal and other professional fees 337,703
Meetings and travel 23,605

Total operating expenses 421,308          

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (2,576)             

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 15,815

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR 13,239$          

DRAFT



GULF CONSORTIUM 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

See notes to the financial statements. 
 

9 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from members 140,050$        
Grant receipts 107,660          
Payments to vendors for services (89,263)           
Receipts from other sources 69                   

Net cash provided by operating activities 158,516          

NET INCREASE IN CASH 158,516          

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 47,949            

CASH AT END OF YEAR 206,465$        

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income (2,576)$           
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided 

by operating activities:
Decrease (increase) in assets:

Due from other governments (107,660)         
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable (9,861)             
Accounts payable from restricted assets 278,613          

Net cash provided by operating activities 158,516$        

 

DRAFT



GULF CONSORTIUM 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

10 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DESCRIPTION OF DISTRICT 
 
Description of District 
The Gulf Consortium (Consortium) was created in response to the United States Resources and 
Ecosystems Sustainability, Tourist Opportunities, and Revived Economies of the Gulf Coast States 
Act of 2012 (RESTORE Act). The RESTORE Act was established as a mechanism for providing 
funding to the Gulf Coast region to restore ecosystems and rebuild local economies damaged by the 
Deepwater Horizon Oil Spill which occurred on April 20, 2010. The RESTORE Act established the 
Gulf Coast Ecosystem Restoration Council (the Restoration Council), an independent entity, which is 
composed of certain federal officials and the Governors of Alabama, Florida, Mississippi, Louisiana, 
and Texas. The RESTORE Act charges the Restoration Council with developing a comprehensive 
plan for ecosystem restoration in the Gulf Coast region ("Council Comprehensive Plan") that 
identifies projects and programs aimed at restoring and protecting the natural resources and 
ecosystems of the Gulf Coast Region. The projects and programs are to be funded from a portion of 
the Gulf Coast Restoration Trust Fund. For Florida, the RESTORE Act, under 33 U.S.C. Chapter 
1321(t)(3)(2012), requires a consortia of local political subdivisions to develop a State Expenditure 
Plan, for which the RESTORE Act provides for Trust Fund expenditures that would fund projects, 
programs and activities that will improve the ecosystems or economy of the Gulf Coast region that 
meet the criteria specified in the RESTORE Act. Therefore, pursuant to Section 163.01, Florida 
Statutes, by Interlocal Agreement among 23 Florida Gulf Coast affected counties, the Gulf 
Consortium was created on November 19, 2012 to: I) develop Florida's State Expenditure Plan, 2) 
prepare and process proposals for funding under the competitive program to be processed and 
administered by the Restoration Council, and 3) act as a resource and advocate for Consortium 
members. 
 
On September 29, 2015, the Restoration Council published its proposed rule on the RESTORE Act, 
Spill Impact component state allocation formula. The Spill Impact component represents 30% of a 
portion of civil fines and administrative penalties derived from the Clean Water Act and is expected 
to be $1.32 billion.  The proposed allocation of the Spill Impact component for the State of Florida 
was 18.36% of the total designated or approximately $242 million.  
 
During the year ended September 30, 2015, the Gulf Consortium planning grant application to 
prepare Florida’s State Expenditure Plan (FSEP) was submitted to the Restoration Council. As of 
September 30, 2016 the Restoration Council approved $4.64 million of the planning grant 
application and $283,613 has been earned. The performance period of the grant is August 23, 2014 
to June 30, 2018.  Of the total award $1,500,000 is earmarked for conceptual design and feasibility 
studies.  Such costs are considered allowable activities under the grant however the Restoration 
Council is not requiring every project in the FSEP to meet specific percentages in the design level.  
As such the $1,500,000 is reserved for those counties desiring to use planning grant funds for 
project conceptual design concurrent with the development of the FSEP. 
 
 
The Reporting Entity 
The Consortium operates independently and is not subject to the oversight of any individual 
governmental unit and therefore is not a component unit of another primary government. 
Membership of the Consortium is limited to the counties that were impacted by the Deepwater 
Horizon Oil Spill. As of September 30, 2016, the Consortium's membership consisted of the 23 
Florida counties with frontage to the Gulf of Mexico. Each member appoints one Director of the 
Consortium to act as a representative on its behalf.  

DRAFT



GULF CONSORTIUM 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

11 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DESCRIPTION OF DISTRICT – 
CONTINUED  

 
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
The Consortium is accounted for as an enterprise fund. Enterprise funds are used to account for 
activities similar to those found in the private sector, where the determination of the excess of 
revenues over expenses is necessary or useful to sound financial accountability. The accounting 
records of the Consortium are organized on the basis of funds as prescribed by generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) for governments as established by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB). 
 
The accrual basis of accounting is used by the Consortium. Revenues are recognized when they are 
earned and expenses when they are incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenue and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a proprietary 
fund’s principal and ongoing operations. The Consortium was formed to develop a State Expenditure 
Plan for economic and environmental recovery of the Gulf Coast in Florida following the Deepwater 
Horizon oil spill.  As such the Consortium considers its principal operating revenue to encompass 
member dues and grant funding earned to prepare the State Expenditure Plan.  Operating expenses 
include legal, management and other day to day operational costs along with services performed by 
consultants and other third parties related to the preparation of the State Expenditure Plan. 
 
Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
The Consortium's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, 
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition. 
 
Restricted Assets  
Grant proceeds received but not disbursed and grant revenue receivable is restricted by the terms of 
the planning grant agreement.  
 
Net Position  
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Consortium’s policy to 
use restricted resources first and then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.  

 
Estimates  
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.  

 
Subsequent Events 
Subsequent events were evaluated through March 20, 2017, which is the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued.  

DRAFT



GULF CONSORTIUM 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

12 

2. CASH 
 
At September 30, 2016, cash consists of $206,465 with local commercial banks. The carrying 
amount is equal to the bank balance. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty, the government's 
deposits may not be returned to it or the organization may not be able to recover the value of its 
investments that are in the possession of an outside party. Funds deposited in the local commercial 
bank are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 per bank or 
by collateral pursuant to the Public Depository Security Act of the State of Florida and are therefore 
considered fully insured or collateralized. 
 
 
3. DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 
 
The Consortium receivable from other governments as of September 30, 2016, is $107,660 due 
from the Gulf Coast Ecosystem Restoration Council. 
 
 

4. RELATED PARTIES 
 
State of Florida 
On June 12, 2013, the Consortium entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the 
Governor of the State of Florida to collaborate for the benefit of the Gulf of Mexico and the State of 
Florida with a focus on maximizing Florida's attainment of funds under the RESTORE Act to restore 
the Gulf Coast resources and energize the economy recovery in the region. The MOU establishes 
the process of coordinating with the Governor's office on projects in the State Expenditure Plan for 
Florida, which will be certified, if appropriate, by the Governor to the Gulf Coast Ecosystem 
Restoration Council for approval (see Note 1 for information on the Restoration Council). As part of 
the MOU, the Governor shall appoint six individuals to provide input and guidance to the Consortium 
on polices and criteria used to determine projects, activities, and programs for consideration in the 
State Expenditure Plan (the Plan). Additionally, the Consortium will consult with the State on the 
development of the Plan and provide the Plan to the Governor for review prior to submission to the 
Restoration Council. 
 
Florida Association of Counties, Inc. 
The Consortium entered into an agreement on October 19, 2012, with the Florida Association of 
Counties, Inc. (FAC) for the FAC to serve as the Consortium’s interim manager. Services to be 
provided include administration of Consortium operations as well as other administrative duties, 
including the annual budget preparation. The term of the initial agreement was extended effective 
October 2013. According to the amendment, the contract term shall be extended and continue until 
sixty (60) days after the effective date of the Consortium’s hiring, engaging, or retaining a permanent 
manager, unless an earlier expiration date is mutually agreed to in writing. FAC is to be 
compensated $5,000 per month for these services. Management expenses for the year ended 
September 30, 2016, totaled $60,000. 
  

DRAFT



GULF CONSORTIUM 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 
 
 

13 

4. RELATED PARTIES – CONTINUED  
 
Leon County, Florida 
The Consortium has an interlocal agreement with Leon County, Florida to provide all necessary 
personnel to develop a competitive procurement policy and procurement services as needed. The 
level of effort related to these services were not significant during the year ended September 30, 
2016, and as such no expenses or related in-kind revenue have been recorded. 
 
 
5. CONCENTRATIONS 
 
The Consortium’s revenue is generated from two sources, membership dues and federal grant funds 
relating to the Gulf Coast Ecosystem Restoration Council Oil Spill Impact Program.  During the year 
ended September 30, 2016 33% of the Consortium’s revenue was generated from membership 
dues and 66% from federal grant awards.  The Consortium is fiscally dependent upon these revenue 
sources. 
 
 
6. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
Grants 
Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already 
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which 
may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the Consortium 
expects such amount, if any, to be immaterial. 
 
 
7. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
The Board of Directors approved a recommendation from the Evaluation Team for permanent 
management services of the Consortium in February, 2017 based on a competitive bid process.  
The contract will come before the Board for approval and execution in April, 2017. 
 
 
 

DRAFT



                                                                       

  

 

 

14 

 
 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON AN EXAMINATION OF 
COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 

10.550, RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 
 
 
To the Members of the Gulf Consortium 
 
We have examined the Gulf Consortium’s (the Consortium) compliance with Florida Statute 218.415 
in regards to the investments for the year ended September 30, 2016: 
 
Management is responsible for the Consortium’s compliance with those requirements. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Consortium’s compliance based on our examination. 
 
Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test 
basis, evidence about the Consortium’s compliance with those requirements and performing such 
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our 
examination provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal 
determination on the Consortium’s compliance with specified requirements. 
 
In our opinion, the Gulf Consortium complied, in all material respects, with Florida Statute 218.415 in 
regards to the investments for the year ended September 30, 2016.  
 
 
Fort Walton Beach, Florida 
March 20, 2017 

 

 

 

DRAFT



                                                                       

  

 

15 

 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS 

 
 
To the Members of the Gulf Consortium 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
business-type activities of the Gulf Consortium, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2016, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Gulf Consortium's 
basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated March 20, 2017. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Gulf Consortium's internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose 
of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Gulf Consortium's internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Gulf Consortium's internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent 
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters  
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Gulf Consortium's financial statements 
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct 
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we 
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or 
other matters that is required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.   

DRAFT



 
 

16 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
Fort Walton Beach, Florida 
March 20, 2017 DRAFT



                                                                       

  

 

17 

 
 
 

MANAGEMENT LETTER 
 

 
To the Members of the Gulf Consortium 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the financial statements of the Gulf Consortium (the Consortium), as of and for the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2016, and have issued our report thereon dated March 20, 2017. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and Chapter 10.550, 
Rules of the Auditor General.  
 
Other Report 
We have issued our Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and 
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards and Independent Accountants’ Report on an Examination of 
Compliance Requirements in Accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. 
Disclosures in this report, which is dated March 20, 2017, should be considered in conjunction with 
this management letter. 
 
Prior Audit Findings 
Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not 
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the 
preceding annual financial report. There were no recommendations made in the preceding audit 
report. 
 
Official Title and Legal Authority 
Section 10.554(l)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal 
authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed 
in this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The official title 
and legal authority for the Consortium has been disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements. The 
Consortium has no component units. 
 
Financial Condition 
Section 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require that we apply 
appropriate procedures and report the results of our determination as to whether or not the 
Consortium has met one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1). Florida 
Statutes, and identification of the specific conditions met. In connection with our audit, we 
determined that the Consortium did not meet any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), 
Florida Statutes. 
  

DRAFT



 

18 

Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.c., and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied 
financial condition assessment procedures. It is management's responsibility to monitor the 
Consortium's financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on 
representations made by management and the review of financial information provided by same.  
 
Annual Financial Report 
Section 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require that we apply 
appropriate procedures and report the results of our determination as to whether the annual 
financial report for the Consortium, for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016, filed with the 
Florida Department of Financial Services pursuant to Section 218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes, is in 
agreement with the annual financial audit report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. In 
connection with our audit, we determined that these two reports were in agreement. 
 
Special District Component Units 
Section 10.554(1)(i)5.d, Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not a 
special district that is a component unit of a county, municipality, or special district, provided the 
financial information necessary for proper reporting of the component unit, within the audited 
financial statements of the county, municipality, or special district in accordance with Section 
218.39(3)(b), Florida Statutes. The Consortium has no special districts that are component units. 
 
Other Matters 
Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of Auditor General, requires that we address in the management letter 
any recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not 
have any such recommendations. 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of Auditor General, requires that we address noncompliance with 
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have 
occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which 
warrants the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not 
have any such findings. 
 
Purpose of this Letter 
Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing 
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida 
Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, members of the Gulf Consortium, and 
applicable management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 
 
We greatly appreciate the assistance and cooperation extended to us during our audit. 
 
 
Fort Walton Beach, Florida 
March 20, 2017 

DRAFT



3/20/2017
10:49 AM

Client: 07685000 - Gulf Consortium

Engagement: AUDA-2016 - Gulf Consortium

Period Ending: 9/30/2016

Trial Balance: 401F - Government Fund Trial Balance

Workpaper: 403 - Adjusting Journal Entries Report (None for FY15)

Fund Level: All

Index: All

Account Description W/P Ref Debit Credit

401-0000-202.00-00 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 10,133.00
401-0000-369.90-99 OTHER REVENUE 26,285.00
401-0000-115.00-00 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 26,285.00
401-0000-369.90-99 OTHER REVENUE 10,133.00

Total 36,418.00 36,418.00

Total Adjusting Journal Entries 36,418.00 36,418.00

Total All Journal Entries 36,418.00 36,418.00

Adjusting Journal Entries
Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 3
To correct and eliminate other revenue.

1 of 1



3/20/2017
10:50 AM

Client: 07685000 - Gulf Consortium

Engagement: AUDA-2016 - Gulf Consortium

Period Ending: 9/30/2016

Trial Balance: 401F - Government Fund Trial Balance

Workpaper: 404 - Reclassifying Journal Entries Report (None for FY15)

Fund Level: All

Index: All

Account Description W/P Ref Debit Credit

501E

401-0001-514.30-05 Grant Writer Fees 15,000.00
401-0000-513.30-00 MANAGEMENT EXPENSES 15,000.00

Total 15,000.00 15,000.00

Total Reclassifying Journal Entries 15,000.00 15,000.00

Total All Journal Entries 15,000.00 15,000.00

Reclassifying Journal Entries
Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 4
To reclassify grant writer expenditures out of management expense

1 of 1



3/20/2017
10:47 AM

Client: 07685000 - Gulf Consortium

Engagement: AUDA-2016 - Gulf Consortium

Period Ending: 9/30/2016

Trial Balance: 401F - Government Fund Trial Balance

Workpaper: 402.401 - Working Trial Balance

Fund Level: Fund

Index: 401

Account Description UNADJ JE Ref # AJE JE Ref # RJE FINAL JE Ref # GASB GOVWDE 1st PP-GOVWDE $Var549 %Var550
9/30/2016 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 9/30/2016 9/30/2015

Group : [11000] Cash and Cash Equivalents
Subgroup : [11000.00]Cash and Cash Equivalents
Fund : 401 Gulf Consortium
401-0000-101.00-00 CASH / SUNTRUST 35,512.00 0.00 0.00 35,512.00 0.00 35,512.00 47,949.00 (12,437.00) (25.94%)                         
401-0001-101.00-00 WELLS FARGO - GRANT 170,953.00 0.00 0.00 170,953.00 0.00 170,953.00 0.00 170,953.00 0.00%
Subtotal Fund : 401 Subgroup : [11000.00] Cash and Cash 206,465.00 0.00 0.00 206,465.00 0.00 206,465.00 47,949.00 158,516.00 330.59%                        

Subtotal All Funds PreSubtotal [11000.00] Cash and Cash Eq 206,465.00 0.00 0.00 206,465.00 0.00 206,465.00 47,949.00 158,516.00 330.59%                        

All Funds Presented Group Total [11000] Cash and Cash Eq 206,465.00 0.00 0.00 206,465.00 0.00 206,465.00 47,949.00 158,516.00 330.59%                        

Group : [13000] Receivables
Subgroup : [13000.03]Accounts
Fund : 401 Gulf Consortium
401-0000-115.00-00 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 26,285.00 (26,285.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

AJE - 3 (26,285.00)
401-0001-115.00-00 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - GRANT 107,660.00 0.00 0.00 107,660.00 0.00 107,660.00 0.00 107,660.00 0.00%
Subtotal Fund : 401 Subgroup : [13000.03] Accounts 133,945.00 (26,285.00) 0.00 107,660.00 0.00 107,660.00 0.00 107,660.00 0.00%

Subtotal All Funds PreSubtotal [13000.03] Accounts 133,945.00 (26,285.00) 0.00 107,660.00 0.00 107,660.00 0.00 107,660.00 0.00%

All Funds Presented Group Total [13000] Receivables 133,945.00 (26,285.00) 0.00 107,660.00 0.00 107,660.00 0.00 107,660.00 0.00%

Group : [21000] Accounts Payable
Subgroup : [21000.00]Accounts Payable
Fund : 401 Gulf Consortium
401-0000-202.00-00 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (32,406.00) 10,133.00 0.00 (22,273.00) 0.00 (22,273.00) (32,134.00) 9,861.00 (30.69%)                         

AJE - 3 10,133.00
401-0001-202.00-00 ACCRUED LIABILITIES - GRANT (278,613.00) 0.00 0.00 (278,613.00) 0.00 (278,613.00) 0.00 (278,613.00) 0.00%
Subtotal Fund : 401 Subgroup : [21000.00] Accounts Payab (311,019.00) 10,133.00 0.00 (300,886.00) 0.00 (300,886.00) (32,134.00) (268,752.00) 836.35%                        

Subtotal All Funds PreSubtotal [21000.00] Accounts Payable (311,019.00) 10,133.00 0.00 (300,886.00) 0.00 (300,886.00) (32,134.00) (268,752.00) 836.35%                        

All Funds Presented Group Total [21000] Accounts Payable (311,019.00) 10,133.00 0.00 (300,886.00) 0.00 (300,886.00) (32,134.00) (268,752.00) 836.35%                        

Group : [35300] Unrestricted
Subgroup : [35300.00]Unrestricted
Fund : 401 Gulf Consortium
401-0000-275.10-00 RESTRICTED NET POSITION (15,815.00) 0.00 0.00 (15,815.00) 0.00 (15,815.00) (8,294.00) (7,521.00) 90.68%                          
Subtotal Fund : 401 Subgroup : [35300.00] Unrestricted (15,815.00) 0.00 0.00 (15,815.00) 0.00 (15,815.00) (8,294.00) (7,521.00) 90.68%                          

Subtotal All Funds PreSubtotal [35300.00] Unrestricted (15,815.00) 0.00 0.00 (15,815.00) 0.00 (15,815.00) (8,294.00) (7,521.00) 90.68%                          

All Funds Presented Group Total [35300] Unrestricted (15,815.00) 0.00 0.00 (15,815.00) 0.00 (15,815.00) (8,294.00) (7,521.00) 90.68%                          

Group : [40300] Intergovernmental
Subgroup : [40300.00]Intergovernmental
Fund : 401 Gulf Consortium
401-0001-389.20-00 PLANNING GRANT: PRE AWARD - LEG (4,740.00) 0.00 0.00 (4,740.00) 0.00 (4,740.00) 0.00 (4,740.00) 0.00%
401-0001-389.20-01 PLANNING GRANT: PRE AWARD AV/M (11,285.00) 0.00 0.00 (11,285.00) 0.00 (11,285.00) 0.00 (11,285.00) 0.00%
401-0001-389.20-02 PLANNING GRANT: PRE AWARD ESA/ (154,928.00) 0.00 0.00 (154,928.00) 0.00 (154,928.00) 0.00 (154,928.00) 0.00%
401-0001-389.20-03 PLANNING GRANT: SEP - ESA 4A (92,660.00) 0.00 0.00 (92,660.00) 0.00 (92,660.00) 0.00 (92,660.00) 0.00%
401-0001-389.20-04 PLANNING GRANT: SEP ESA 5 (15,000.00) 0.00 0.00 (15,000.00) 0.00 (15,000.00) 0.00 (15,000.00) 0.00%
Subtotal Fund : 401 Subgroup : [40300.00] Intergovernmen (278,613.00) 0.00 0.00 (278,613.00) 0.00 (278,613.00) 0.00 (278,613.00) 0.00%

Subtotal All Funds PreSubtotal [40300.00] Intergovernmental (278,613.00) 0.00 0.00 (278,613.00) 0.00 (278,613.00) 0.00 (278,613.00) 0.00%

All Funds Presented Group Total [40300] Intergovernmenta (278,613.00) 0.00 0.00 (278,613.00) 0.00 (278,613.00) 0.00 (278,613.00) 0.00%

Group : [45100] Charges for Services (Proprietary Funds Only)
Subgroup : [45100.00]Charges for Services
Fund : 401 Gulf Consortium
401-0000-349.00-00 MEMBERSHIP DUES (140,050.00) 0.00 0.00 (140,050.00) 0.00 (140,050.00) (140,050.00) 0.00 0.00%
Subtotal Fund : 401 Subgroup : [45100.00] Charges for Ser (140,050.00) 0.00 0.00 (140,050.00) 0.00 (140,050.00) (140,050.00) 0.00 0.00%

1 of 2



3/20/2017
10:47 AM

Subtotal All Funds PreSubtotal [45100.00] Charges for Servic (140,050.00) 0.00 0.00 (140,050.00) 0.00 (140,050.00) (140,050.00) 0.00 0.00%

All Funds Presented Group Total [45100] Charges for Servi (140,050.00) 0.00 0.00 (140,050.00) 0.00 (140,050.00) (140,050.00) 0.00 0.00%

Group : [55200] Operating
Subgroup : [55200.01]Management Expenses
Fund : 401 Gulf Consortium
401-0000-513.30-00 MANAGEMENT EXPENSES 75,000.00 0.00 (15,000.00) 60,000.00 0.00 60,000.00 60,000.00 0.00 0.00%

RJE - 4 (15,000.00)
Subtotal Fund : 401 Subgroup : [55200.01] Management Ex 75,000.00 0.00 (15,000.00) 60,000.00 0.00 60,000.00 60,000.00 0.00 0.00%

Subtotal All Funds PreSubtotal [55200.01] Management Expe 75,000.00 0.00 (15,000.00) 60,000.00 0.00 60,000.00 60,000.00 0.00 0.00%

Subgroup : [55200.02]Professional Fees
Fund : 401 Gulf Consortium
401-0000-513.30-01 AUDIT 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 0.00%
401-0000-514.30-00 LEGAL 52,375.00 0.00 0.00 52,375.00 0.00 52,375.00 60,000.00 (7,625.00) (12.71%)                         
401-0001-514.30-00 PLANNING GRANT: LEGAL 4,740.00 0.00 0.00 4,740.00 0.00 4,740.00 0.00 4,740.00 0.00%
401-0001-514.30-02 PLANNING GRANT: CONSULTING 154,928.00 0.00 0.00 154,928.00 0.00 154,928.00 0.00 154,928.00 0.00%
401-0001-514.30-03 DEVELOPMENT OF SEP: WORK ORDE 92,660.00 0.00 0.00 92,660.00 0.00 92,660.00 0.00 92,660.00 0.00%
401-0001-514.30-04 DEVELOPMENT OF SEP: WORK ORDE 15,000.00 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00%
401-0001-514.30-05 Grant Writer Fees 0.00 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00%

RJE - 4 15,000.00
Subtotal Fund : 401 Subgroup : [55200.02] Professional Fe 322,703.00 0.00 15,000.00 337,703.00 0.00 337,703.00 63,000.00 274,703.00 436.04%                        

Subtotal All Funds PreSubtotal [55200.02] Professional Fees 322,703.00 0.00 15,000.00 337,703.00 0.00 337,703.00 63,000.00 274,703.00 436.04%                        

Subgroup : [55200.04]Travel and Other
Fund : 401 Gulf Consortium
401-0000-519-30-00 MEETING AND TRAVEL 11,630.00 0.00 0.00 11,630.00 0.00 11,630.00 8,520.00 3,110.00 36.50%                          
401-0000-519.30-99 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 690.00 0.00 0.00 690.00 0.00 690.00 1,030.00 (340.00) (33.01%)                         
401-0001-519.30-00 PLANNING GRANT: PRE AWARD AV/M 11,285.00 0.00 0.00 11,285.00 0.00 11,285.00 0.00 11,285.00 0.00%
Subtotal Fund : 401 Subgroup : [55200.04] Travel and Othe 23,605.00 0.00 0.00 23,605.00 0.00 23,605.00 9,550.00 14,055.00 147.17%                        

Subtotal All Funds PreSubtotal [55200.04] Travel and Other 23,605.00 0.00 0.00 23,605.00 0.00 23,605.00 9,550.00 14,055.00 147.17%                        

All Funds Presented Group Total [55200] Operating 421,308.00 0.00 0.00 421,308.00 0.00 421,308.00 132,550.00 288,758.00 217.85%                        

Group : [65500] Interest Income
Subgroup : [65500.00]Interest Income
Fund : 401 Gulf Consortium
401-0000-361.10-00 INTEREST INCOME (69.00) 0.00 0.00 (69.00) 0.00 (69.00) (21.00) (48.00) 228.57%                        
Subtotal Fund : 401 Subgroup : [65500.00] Interest Income (69.00) 0.00 0.00 (69.00) 0.00 (69.00) (21.00) (48.00) 228.57%                        

Subtotal All Funds PreSubtotal [65500.00] Interest Income (69.00) 0.00 0.00 (69.00) 0.00 (69.00) (21.00) (48.00) 228.57%                        

All Funds Presented Group Total [65500] Interest Income (69.00) 0.00 0.00 (69.00) 0.00 (69.00) (21.00) (48.00) 228.57%                        

Group : [65900] Miscellaneous
Subgroup : [65900.00]Miscellaneous
Fund : 401 Gulf Consortium
401-0000-369.90-99 OTHER REVENUE (16,152.00) 16,152.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

AJE - 3 26,285.00
AJE - 3 (10,133.00)

Subtotal Fund : 401 Subgroup : [65900.00] Miscellaneous (16,152.00) 16,152.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

Subtotal All Funds PreSubtotal [65900.00] Miscellaneous (16,152.00) 16,152.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

All Funds Presented Group Total [65900] Miscellaneous (16,152.00) 16,152.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

NET (INCOME) LOSS (13,576.00) 16,152.00 0.00 2,576.00 0.00 2,576.00 (7,521.00) 10,097.00 (134.25%)                       

Sum of Account Groups 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

2 of 2



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 10 
 



Gulf Consortium Executive Committee 
March 30, 2017 

 
Agenda Item 10 

Recommend Approval of Contract with The Balmoral Group, LLC  
for Management Services  

 
Executive Summary:  
This agenda item seeks Board approval of the attached proposed Agreement for 
Management Services between the Gulf Consortium and The Balmoral Group, 
LLC.   
 
Background: 
On October 19, 2012, the Consortium hired the Florida Association of Counties 
(FAC) to provide Interim Management Services to the Consortium.  The original 
contract contained a one-year term. That term was then extended in September 
2013 until "the effective date of the Consortium's hiring, engaging or retaining a 
permanent Manager, unless an earlier expiration date is mutually agreed to in 
writing."   
 
In anticipation of planning grant funds, the Consortium began the process of 
hiring a permanent Manager by approving the issuance of a Request for 
Proposals (RFP) utilizing the procurement services of Leon County Purchasing 
Department.  The RFP was issued on June 23, 2015.  However, the RFP 
process was suspended on July 15, 2015 due to the Restoration Council 
confirming that planning grant funds would not be allowed for much of the costs 
of the day-to-day functions performed by the Manager of the Consortium.  
 
Upon clarifying the contract funding issues, on December 2, 2016, the 
Consortium approved conducting a competitive procurement process of hiring a 
permanent Manager through the issuance of an RFP.  On February 8, 2017, the 
Board voted unanimously to accept the Evaluation Team’s recommendation and 
authorized the negotiation of a contract with The Balmoral Group.   
 
Attached for the Board’s consideration is a proposed Agreement for Management 
Services for a term of two years commencing May 1, 2017 through April 31, 
2019.  Management Services for the initial two-year period will not to exceed 
$8,588 per month.  If the Agreement is extended beyond the initial two-year 
period, the compensation shall not exceed $7,642 per month.     
 
Options: 
(1) Approve the proposed Agreement. 
(2) Disapprove the proposed Agreement. 
(3) Provide other direction. 
 
  



Fiscal Impact:   
Currently, the Consortium has budgeted $60,000 annually for interim 
management services through the county contributions and $50,000 annually, for 
two years, for contract management services through the planning grant.   
 
If approved, the proposed Agreement with The Balmoral Group totals $103,056 
annually.   
 
Attachment: 
Agreement for Management Services between the Gulf Consortium and The 
Balmoral Group, LLC. 
 
Prepared by:  
Lynn M. Hoshihara 
Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A. 
General Counsel 
March 22, 2017 
 
Action Taken: 
 
Motion to: ____________________, Made by: ________________________; 
 
Seconded by:  _____________________. 
 
Approved____; Approved as amended_______; Defeated_________. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  























 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 11 
 



1 
 

Gulf Consortium Executive Committee 
March 30, 2017 

 
Agenda Item 11 

Discussion of Teleconference Gulf Consortium 
Board of Directors’ Meetings 

 
 
Executive Summary:  
This agenda item calls for discussion on providing conference call ability for the 
full Gulf Consortium Board meetings.  
 
Background: 
Gulf Consortium staff has provided the Executive Committee and Board of 
Directors information and analysis on the teleconferencing ability and reliability 
for Gulf Consortium Board meetings in 2015 and 2016.  The Board has directed 
FAC staff to bring back for discussion the ability to hold teleconference meetings 
and for members of the Gulf Consortium Board of Directors to be able to attend 
and vote via teleconference if unable to attend in person.    
 
Analysis: 
The issues for the Board to discuss are two-fold: (1) as a matter of Board policy, 
whether it wants to allow remote, full participation in Board meetings by Directors 
or their alternates or whether it wants to continue the culture of conducting 
business at in-person meetings; and, (2) if full, remote participation is allowed, 
the potential for unreliable telephonic access exists because of the transitory 
nature of the Board meetings.  
 
The Consortium has a sufficient budget to cover the costs of providing remote 
participation. In the past two years, the Consortium has incurred the following 
amounts, indicated by location for varying levels and success for remote access. 
 
Meeting Date Location/Facility AV Cost for 

Meeting 
Telephone 

Access 
Available 

Number in 
Attendance 

 
1/21/2015 

FDEP - 
Tallahassee 

 
$846.00 

 
No 

 
23 

 
3/25/2015 

FDEP – 
Tallahassee 

 
$846.00 

 
No 

 
27 

 
6/19/2015 

Sawgrass 
Marriott – St. 
Johns County 

 
$2,891.68 (basic 
mics and sound) 

 
 

No 

 
 

22 
 

8/26/2015 
St. Petersburg 

Hilton – Pinellas 
County 

 
$2,558.58  

 
No 

 
26 

 
11/18/2015 

Amelia Island 
Plantation – 

Nassau County 

 
$1,747.95  
(no issues) 

 
Yes 

 
22 



2 
 

Meeting Date Location/Facility AV Cost for 
Meeting 

Telephone 
Access 

Available 

Number in 
Attendance 

 
 

4/21/2016 

 
Hillsborough 

County Center 

 
 

$0 

 
Yes (no 
issues) 

 
 

19 
 

6/28/2016 
 

Hyatt Regency 
Orlando 

 
$2,880.29 

 
Yes (phone 

system could 
not connect 
properly – 2 

way 
communication 

not working 
correctly) 

 
20 

 
9/13/2016 

Hutchinson 
Island Marriott – 
Martin County 

 
$1,740.60 

 
Yes (could not 
get phone line 

to work 
properly) 

 
18 

 
12/2/2016 

 
Hilton Buena 
Vista Orlando 

 
$0 

 
Yes (feedback 
issues; hotel 

did not charge 
for AV due to 

issues)  

 
23 

2/8/2017 Hillsborough 
County Center 

 
$0 

Yes (no 
issues) 

 
21 

 
 
Prepared by:  
Ginger Delegal  
Florida Association of Counties 
Interim Manager 
On:  March 22, 2017 
 
Action Taken: 
 
Motion to: ____________________, Made by: ________________________; 
 
Seconded by:  _____________________. 
 
Approved____; Approved as amended_______; Defeated_________. 


	3.30.17_AGENDA
	FAR Notice
	Gulf Consortium Executive Committee Sign In Sheet
	Sheet1

	AGENDA ITEM 3_Divider
	Item 3_Approval of 2.1.17 Minutes
	Gulf Consortium Executive Committee

	2.1.17 Minutes
	AGENDA ITEM 4_Divider
	Item 4_Update on Work Order #6
	Gulf Consortium Executive Committee

	AGENDA ITEM 5_Divider
	Item 5_Recommend Approval of Work Order #7
	Gulf Consortium Executive Committee

	Item 5_Draft Work Order 7
	AGENDA ITEM 6_Divider
	Item 6_Preview of Work Orer # 8
	Gulf Consortium Executive Committee

	Item 6_Draft Work Order 8
	AGENDA ITEM 7_Divider
	Item 7_Discussion on Conceptual Design and Feasibility Study
	Gulf Consortium Executive Committee

	AGENDA ITEM 8.1_Divider
	Item 8.1_Grant Management Update
	Gulf Consortium Executive Committee

	AGENDA ITEM 8.2_Divider
	Item 8.2_Analysis of Work Orders Approved and Grant Award Amount
	Gulf Consortium Executive Committee

	AGENDA ITEM 9_Divider
	Item 9_Update on FY 2015-2016 Audit
	Gulf Consortium Executive Committee

	Item 9_Draft Independent Audit
	Gulf Consortium - DRAFT (004)
	AJE GC
	Reclass GC
	TB Gulf Consortium

	AGENDA ITEM 10_Divider
	Item 10_Agreement for Management Services
	Item 10_Agreement for Mgmt Svcs btw the Gulf Consortium & the Balmoral Group, LL
	AGENDA ITEM 11_Divider
	Item 11_Discussion of Options for Recording Meetings



